
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
AGENDA 

 
 
 
 
 

JANUARY 3, 2011 
 

 



Document last changed: 12/29/2010 11:47 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, January 03, 2011 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Work Sessions 
6:00 P.M. Sign Ordinance   
 
Regular Agenda 
7:00 p.m. Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-30 Eagle Creek Home 
Association:  Request to amend the Unified Development 
Ordinance, Chapter 7, Section 7.2 to establish an electronic 
informational subdivision sign as a permissible sign in Currituck 
County and to set development standards for that type of sign. 

Item 4 Public Hearing and Action:  PB 10-29 Mark Minor:  Request to 
amend the Unified Development Ordinance, Chapter 3, Section 
3.5.4. and Chapter 17, Section 17.2 Definitions to modify the 
criteria in which a bed and breakfast inn is established. 

Item 5 Consideration of   Identity Theft Prevention Ordinance 

Item 6 Consideration of Fixed Base Operator at Airport   

Item 7 Appointment to Workforce Development Board   

Item 8 Appointment of two At Large and District 4 Appointments to 
Airport Board   

Item 9 Appointment of Commissioner to the following Boards: 

    Commissioner Gilbert 

1



Document last changed: 12/29/2010 11:47 AM 

 
   

  Recreation Board 

  Airport  Board 

  Commissioner Rorer 

  Work Force Development Committee 

  EIC Board 

  Albemarle Commission 

  Commissioner Etheridge 

  Albemarle Regional Health 

  Extension Advisory Board 

  Albemarle Mental Health 

  Commissioner Martin 

  COA Board 

  Senior Citizens Board 

  Juvenile Crime Prevention Committee 

  Commissioner Petrey 

  Social Service Board 

  Whalehead Board 

  Whalehead Drainage Board 

  Commissioner O’Neal 

  Economic Development Board 

  Tourism Board 

  Chairman Aydlett 

  Fire & EMS Board 

  Albemarle Solid Waste 

2



Document last changed: 12/29/2010 11:47 AM 

 
 

Item 10 Consent Agenda: 
1. Approval of December 6, 2010, Minutes 
2. Request to hire Jon Dennis at Detention Center  
3. Resolution to declare surplus property, public works 
4. Approval of 2010 Order of Tax Collections 
5. Budget Amendments 
6. Approval of Resolution RC&D 
7. Approval of Grant for Rural Center 
8. Change orders 1 & 2, Baker Construction - Judicial Roof 

Item 11 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 12 County Manager’s Report 

Adjourn 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Item 1  Consideration of "Buy Local" Campaign 

Item 2  Request for additional Marketing funds from Occupancy Tax 

Item 3  TDA Budget Amendments 

Adjourn 

 

 

3



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-3055 

FAX 252-232-3026 

  

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:   Board of Commissioners  
 
From:  Planning Staff 
 
Date:  December 20, 2010 
 
Re:   PB 10-30 Eagle Creek Home Association (Signage) 
 
 
 
 
The enclosed text amendment requested by Eagle Creek Home Owners’ Association is 
intended to establish an electronic informational subdivision sign as a permissible sign in 
Currituck County and to set development standards for that type of sign.  Currently, only 
subdivision entrance and directory signs are allowed in the Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO) provided there is not more than 2 such signs with a maximum area of 60 square feet 
and a maximum height of 15 feet.  
 
Eagle Creek’s request is to establish a sign that would advertise events happening inside the 
subdivision.  These signs will only advertise events organized by the Home Owners’ 
Association including monthly board meetings, cookouts, etc.  Commercial advertising will be 
prohibited.   
 
The standards proposed for the sign include only allowing them for subdivisions with 300 or 
more lots, limiting the size and the percentage of the sign that can be LED/digital, and 
requiring that the material used and overall design be similar to existing subdivision signs on 
the property.   
 
Staff has concerns about this request.  First, if the intent of these signs is to be viewable by 
only the residents of the subdivision, then visibility from the general public should be limited.  
Informational subdivision signs should not be visible from Highway 158/168. A more adequate 
location for these signs would be at the subdivision’s clubhouse.  This request does not 
propose locational requirements that address these aesthetic concerns.  The Land Use Plan 
states: 
 
POLICY CA1: The important economic, tourism, and community image benefits of attractive, 
functional MAJOR HIGHWAY CORRIDORS through Currituck County shall be recognized. 
Such highway corridors, beginning with US 158 and NC 168, shall receive priority attention for 

4



 

 
10-30  Eagle Creek Home Owners’ 

Association 
Text Amendment 

Page 2 of 6 

improved appearance and development standards, including driveway access, landscaping, 
buffering, signage, lighting and tree preservation. 
 
Lastly, staff feels a LED sign would not be in harmony with the surrounding residential 
character of a subdivision.   The purpose of informational subdivisions signs could be achieved 
through smaller non-internally illuminated signs already allowed by UDO.   
 
Due to the above concerns, staff recommends denial of the proposed text amendment.  
 
The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their December 14, 2010 meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions, please contact Brad Schuler, Planner I, of the Planning 
Department by phone at 252-232-6033 or by email at brad.schuler@CurrituckCountyNC.gov. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



 

 
10-30  Eagle Creek Home Owners’ 

Association 
Text Amendment 

Page 3 of 6 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (12-14-10) 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the sign would be two sided. 
 
Mr. Woody stated yes. 
 
Mr. Midgette asked how many subdivisions in the county are 300 lots or more. 
 
Mr. Woody stated less than five on the Mainland. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated Greg Gould, who is a resident in Eagle Creek, has sent emails that he is 
opposed to the request.  
 
Ms. Wilson asked if there was anything in the Unified Development Ordinance which would 
prohibit this sign at the clubhouse. 
 
Mr. Woody stated yes because they have a golf course in the subdivision which is a 
commercial type use.  
 
Mr. Bowman stated the sign would be one-fourth of a mile from Hwy. 168. The sign would 
advertise events happening inside the subdivision including monthly meetings, cookouts, etc.  
Mr. Bowman stated the Association agrees to no advertising on the sign. 
 
Mr. West asked how the Association advertises events now. 
 
Mr. Bowman stated they have a website but it is not up-to-date. 
 
Mr. West asked if you are advertising monthly meetings and community events what would be 
on the sign during the rest of the year. 
 
Mr. Bowman stated it would be those events and if they didn’t have anything it would just show 
the date, time and weather. The sign would have amber lighting which would be more subdue. 
 
Mr. Bell asked if some type of lease could be worked out with the golf course. 
 
Mr. Bowman stated they have tried. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if this request has been approved by the Association Board as well as the 
homeowners. 
 
Mr. Bowman stated the board has been advertising this request for nine months through the 
monthly meetings and quarterly newsletters which they have only had one this year. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated she is concern that this request would be countywide. 
 
Mr. Clark stated the county is actively trying to limit the number of signs in the county. 
 

6



 

 
10-30  Eagle Creek Home Owners’ 

Association 
Text Amendment 

Page 4 of 6 

ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs moved to deny PB 10-30 due to its inconsistency with the 2006 Land Use Plan and 
that the request is not reasonable and not in the public interest and does not promotes orderly 
growth and development.  Mr. Clark seconded the motioned. Motion carried unanimously. 

7



 

 
10-30  Eagle Creek Home Owners’ 

Association 
Text Amendment 

Page 5 of 6 

PB 10-30 Eagle Creek Home Association 
UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 

 
An amendment to Chapter 7: Signs to allow Informational Subdivision Signs as a permissible 
sign in Currituck County.   
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North Carolina 
that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That Chapter 7: Zoning Districts, Permitted Uses Table is amended adding the 
following underlined language, and renumbering accordingly. 
 
Section 7.2 Signs Excluded from Regulation 
 
N. Subdivision entrance, subdivision directory, and multi-family development entrance 

signs. At the entrance to a subdivision or multi-family development, there may be not 
more than 2 such signs (not on the same lot) with a maximum area of 60 square feet and 
a maximum height of 15 feet. In cases where such signs are mounted on decorative 
walls, the wall area shall not be utilized to calculate the sign surface area.   

 
O. Subdivisions with 300 or more lots may have an informational subdivision sign provided it 

meets the following criteria: 
 

1. Shall only advertise events happening in and organized by the subdivision.  Off-
premise and commercial advertisement is prohibited.  

 
2. Shall be a maximum of 50 square feet in area.  No more than 50 percent of the area 

of the sign can be a message board, reader board, or electronically controlled 
message sign.  

 
3. Shall use similar materials and have a similar design to existing subdivision signs. 

 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      

8



 

 
10-30  Eagle Creek Home Owners’ 

Association 
Text Amendment 

Page 6 of 6 

SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    
 

 

9



  
Currituck County  

Department of Planning 
Post Office Box 70 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-3055 

FAX 252-232-3026 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:   Board of Commissioners 
 
From:  Planning Staff 
 
Date:  December 20, 2010 
 
Re:   Mark Minor Bed and Breakfast Text Amendment 
 
 
 
 
The enclosed text amendment requested by Mark Minor is intended to allow bed and 
breakfast establishments in single family dwellings built since November 5, 1984.     The 
date restriction was originally placed in the ordinance by reference as the approval date 
of a text amendment that allowed bed and breakfast establishments. 
 
Typically, bed and breakfast establishments are converted single family dwellings that 
have historical features or significance.  However, many communities also allow bed 
and breakfast establishments in single family dwellings that do not have historical 
features or significance.    Staff notes that a bed and breakfast establishment located in 
a single family dwelling that contains more than five guest rooms for rent is not 
considered a single family dwelling for purposes of complying with the NC Residential 
Code.   
 
The Planning Board recommended unanimous approval at their December 14, 2010 
meeting. 
 
It appears this request is consistent with the Land Use Plan and staff supports the text 
amendment as submitted. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

10



 

Mark Minor 
Text Amendment 

Page 2 of 4 
 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION (12-14-10) 
Mr. Minor stated he has been experiencing and enjoying Currituck County for 10 years. 
The bed and breakfast inn will help the taxpayers in the county. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked how many bedrooms will be at the bed and breakfast inn. 
 
Mr. Minor stated three. 
 
ACTION 
Mr. West moved to approve PB 10-29 due to its consistency with the 2006 Land Use 
Plan and that the request is reasonable and in the public interest and promotes orderly 
growth and development. Mr. Kovacs seconded the motion. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

11



 

Mark Minor 
Text Amendment 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Mark Minor 
PB 10-29 

UDO AMENDMENT REQUEST 
 
An amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance Chapter 3, Section 3.5.4. and 
Chapter 17, Section 17.2 Definitions to modify the criteria in which a bed and breakfast 
inn is established. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Currituck, North 
Carolina that the Unified Development Ordinance of the County of Currituck be 
amended as follows: 
 
Item 1: That Section 3.5.4 is amended by deleting the following strikethrough language: 
 
A. A bed and breakfast inn shall take place within a building that, before November 5, 

1984, was designed and used as a single-family detached dwelling and consist of 
a single dwelling unit together with the rental of one or more dwelling rooms on a 
daily or weekly basis to tourists, vacationers, or similar transients, where the 
provision of meals, if provided at all, is limited to the breakfast meal. 

 
Item 2: That Section 17.2 is amended by deleting the following strikethrough language: 
 
Bed and Breakfast  
A use:  
 

a. that takes place within a building that, before November 5, 1984, was 
designed and used as a single-family detached dwelling,  

 
b. that consists of a single dwelling unit together with the rental of one or more 

dwelling rooms on a daily or weekly basis to tourists, vacationers, or similar 
transients,  

 
c. where the provision of meals, if provided at all, is limited to the breakfast 

meal; and,  
 

d. where the bed and breakfast operation is conducted primarily by persons who 
reside within the dwelling unit, with the assistance of not more than the 
equivalent of one full-time employee.  

 
Item 3: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable and if any of its provisions or 
any sentence, clause, or paragraph or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held unconstitutional or violative of the Laws of the State of North 
Carolina by any court of competent jurisdiction, the decision of such court shall not 
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application. 
 

12



 

Mark Minor 
Text Amendment 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
Item 4: This ordinance amendment shall be in effect from and after the    day 
of    , 201__. 
 
 
       
Board of Commissioners’ Chairman 
Attest: 
 
 
     
Gwen H. Keene 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
DATE ADOPTED:     
MOTION TO ADOPT BY COMMISSIONER:      
SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER:       
 VOTE:   AYES  NAYS   
****************************************************************************** 
PLANNING BOARD DATE:     
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION:      
 VOTE:   AYES   NAYS    
ADVERTISEMENT DATE OF PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:     
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS ACTION:     
POSTED IN UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE:     
AMENDMENT NUMBER:    
 
 
 
 
 

13



 

 

 

 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

COUNTY OF CURRITUCK                                    
 

 DANIEL F. SCANLON, II 
O. Vance Aydlett, Jr., Chairman 153 Courthouse Road / Post Office Box 39 County Manager 
John D. Rorer, Vice-Chairman Telephone (252) 232-0300 / Fax (252) 232-3551 DONALD I. MCREE, JR. 

J. Owen Etheridge State Courier # 10-69-17 County Attorney 
 Marion Gilbert  GWEN H. KEENE, CMC 

Paul R. Martin 
S. Paul O’Neal 

H. M. “Butch” Petrey 
 

Clerk to the Board 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  Board of Commissioners 

FROM:  Ike McRee, County Attorney 

DATE:  December 28, 2010 

RE:  Proposed Ordinance Establishing Identity Theft Prevention Program  

 

     The Federal Trade Commission has recently announced that effective January 1, 2011 its 
rules requiring creditors to implement identity theft prevention programs must be implemented 
by covered entities.  These rules, also known as “Red Flag Rules” require covered entities 
meeting the definition of creditor to implement a program to detect, prevent and mitigate identity 
theft activities in accounts covered by the Federal Trade Commission regulations. 

     Currituck County is deemed a “creditor” under the regulations because particularly with 
regard to provision of utility services the county provides a service that is paid for after the 
service is delivered.  In addition, in some instances the county maintains deposits which under 
the regulations also means the county is a “creditor” required to implement an identity theft 
prevention program.  The attached ordinance sets out how the county will create accounts for 
customers, matters that raise a “red flag” to possible identity theft activity, and step that will be 
taken by the county should “red flag” activity be discovered. 

  

 

 

14



1 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 1 
AMENDING CHAPTER 2 OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES 2 
TO ESTABLISH IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM AS REQUIRED BY 3 

THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSON 4 

 5 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to rules adopted by the Federal Trade Commission, referred to as 6 
“Red Flag” rules, creditors are required to implement identity theft prevention programs to 7 
detect, prevent and mitigate identity theft activity in covered accounts; and 8 

 WHEREAS, the County of Currituck maintains accounts as defined by the Federal Trade 9 
Commission rules that include deposit accounts or the extension of credit for services involving 10 
deferred payment such as utility payments that are paid after delivery of service and is therefore 11 
subject to the Federal Trade Commission rule requiring the adoption and implementation of an 12 
identity theft protection program.  13 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners for the 14 
County of Currituck, North Carolina as follows: 15 

PART I.  The Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, North Carolina is amended by adding new 16 
sections and division to Chapter 2, Article I to read as follows: 17 

DIVISION 2.  IDENTITY THEFT PREVENTION PROGRAM 18 

Sec. 2-4 Title.  19 

     This ordinance may be known and may be cited as the “Currituck County Identity Theft 20 
Prevention Ordinance.  21 

Sec. 2-5  Purpose and authority. 22 

     The purpose of this ordinance is to provide an identity theft prevention program that complies 23 
with Federal Trade Commission regulations set forth in 16 CFR 168.2 and is enacted pursuant to 24 
authority conferred by Federal Trade Commission regulation 16 CFR 168.2, and for the purpose 25 
of complying with federal regulations requirement that a creditor establish an identity theft 26 
prevention program which will use red flags to detect, prevent and mitigate identity theft related 27 
information used in covered accounts.  28 

Sec. 2-6  Definitions. 29 

     For purposes of this ordinance the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly 30 
indicates or requires a different meaning. 31 

     Account means continuing relationship established by a person with a financial institution or 32 
creditor to obtain a product or service for personal, family, household or business purposes. 33 
Account  includes: 34 

15



2 
 

          (1)     An extension of credit, such as the purchase of property or services involving a 1 
deferred payment; and 2 

          (2)     A deposit account. 3 

     Covered account means:  4 

          (1)     An account that a financial institution or creditor offers or maintains, primarily for 5 
personal, family, or household   purposes, that involves or is designed to permit multiple 6 
payments or  transactions, such as a credit card account, mortgage loan, automobile loan, margin 7 
account, cell phone account, utility account, checking account, or savings account; and 8 

          (2)     Any other account that the financial institution or creditor offers or maintains for 9 
which there is a reasonably foreseeable risk to customers or to the safety and soundness of the 10 
financial institution or creditor from identity theft, including financial, operational, compliance, 11 
reputation, or litigation risks. 12 

     County means the County of Currituck 13 

     Credit means the right granted by a creditor to a debtor to defer payment debt or to incur 14 
debts and defer its payment or to purchase property or services and payment therefore. 15 

     Creditor means any person who regularly extends, renews, or continues credit; any person 16 
who regularly arranges for the extension, renewal, or continuation of credit; or any assignee of 17 
an original creditor who participates in the decision to extend, renew, or continue credit and 18 
includes utility companies and telecommunications companies. 19 

     Customer means a person that has a covered account with a financial institution or creditor. 20 

     Identity theft means a fraud committed or attempted using identifying information of another 21 
person without authority. 22 

     Person means a natural person, a corporation, government or governmental subdivision or 23 
agency, trust, estate, partnership, cooperative, or association. 24 

     Personal identifying information means a person's credit card account information, debit card 25 
information, bank account information and drivers license information and for a natural person 26 
includes their social security number, mother's birth name, and date of birth. 27 

     Red flag means a pattern, practice, or specific activity that indicates the possible existence of 28 
identity theft. 29 

     Service provider means a person that provides a service directly to the county. 30 

 31 

16



3 
 

Sec. 2-7  Identity theft prevention program. 1 

     The Federal Trade Commission (FTC) requires creditors to implement an identity theft 2 
program. The FTC requirement and regulation is necessary in order to comply with Part 681 of 3 
Title 16 of the Code of Federal Regulations implementing Sections 114 and 315 of the Fair and 4 
Accurate Credit Transactions Act (FACTA) of 2003. 5 

Sec. 2-8  Establishing a covered account. 6 

     (a)     To open an account a customer shall provide a valid government issued identification 7 
card with a valid photo ID. 8 

     (b)     The customer will be issued a random account number to be associated with the 9 
covered account information. 10 

Sec. 2-9 Access to covered account information. 11 

     (a)     Access to customer accounts shall be password protected and shall be limited to 12 
authorized county personnel. 13 

     (b)     Password(s) shall be changed on a regular basis, and in accordance with the county's 14 
Information Technical Services password security policy. 15 

     (c)     Any unauthorized access to or other breach of customer accounts is to be reported to the 16 
relevant department head, Information Technical Services Department and Finance Department. 17 

     (d)     Any requests for customer account information, other than from a properly identified 18 
customer, shall be reported to the relevant department head, Information Technical Services 19 
Department and Finance Department. 20 

Sec. 2-10  Credit card payments. 21 

     (a)     A vendor that processes credit card payments over the Internet shall certify that it has an 22 
identity theft program prevention program which meets the requirements of the Federal Trade 23 
and Regulation requirements under 16 CFR 168.2. 24 

     (b)     Credit card payments made by telephone shall be entered immediately into the 25 
computer database for customer account information. 26 

     (c)     Account statements, receipts and invoices for covered accounts shall include four digits 27 
of the credit card or debit card or the bank account used for payment of the covered account. 28 

 29 

 30 

17



4 
 

Sec. 2-11  Identifying red flags. 1 

     All employees responsible for or involved in the process of opening a covered account, 2 
restoring a covered account or accepting payment for a covered account shall check for red flags 3 
as indicators of possible identity theft and such red flags may include: 4 

     (a)     Consumer reporting agencies, fraud detection agencies or service providers. For 5 
example: 6 

     (1)     Notice of credit freeze; 7 

     (2)     Notice of address discrepancy; 8 

     (3)     Pattern of activity in a consumer report that is inconsistent with the history and usual 9 
pattern of activity of an applicant or customer, such as: 10 

          (a)     Increase in number of inquiries; 11 

          (b)     Increase in recent credit relationships; 12 

          (c)     Closed account due to abuse of account privileges. 13 

     (b)     Suspicious documents. 14 

     (1)     Documents that appeared altered or forged; 15 

     (2)     Identification that appears altered or information is inconsistent with information 16 
provided by customer; 17 

     (3)     Applications that appear altered or forged. 18 

     (c)     Suspicious personal identification, such as suspicious address change. 19 

     (1)     Personal identification information inconsistent with information reported from a 20 
financial institution; 21 

     (2)     Personal identification has been previously identified and flagged as fraudulent; 22 

     (3)     Fictitious mailing address, phone numbers, etc.; 23 

     (4)     Social security number does not match that of the customer or applicant. 24 

     (d)     Unusual use of or suspicious activity relating to a covered account. 25 

      (1)     An inactive account is used after a prolonged inactive period; 26 

18



5 
 

     (2)     Noticeable change in pattern of account activity; 1 

     (3)     Customer notifies the Finance Director or her designee of unauthorized charges or 2 
transactions in connection with a customer's account. 3 

     (e)     Notice from customers, law enforcement, victims or other reliable sources regarding 4 
possible identity theft relating to covered accounts. 5 

Sec. 2-12.  Prevention and mitigation of identity theft. 6 

     If a county employee suspects or confirms that a security breach has occurred, the employee 7 
shall: 8 

     (a)     Contact Information Technical Services Department, Finance Department and the 9 
County Attorney's Office.  Information Technical Services Department and the County 10 
Attorney's Office will assist the employee with notifying the customer and law enforcement 11 
agency. 12 

     (b)     Upon confirming an unauthorized use or access, Information Technical Services 13 
Department shall change any account numbers, passwords, security codes, or other security 14 
devices that permit access to the account; or close the account. 15 

     (c)     The county department with the assistance of the Information Technical Services 16 
Department, shall determine date of the breach and collect charges for the account that are 17 
attributable to the customer. 18 

     (d)     Any other appropriate action to prevent or mitigate identity theft.  19 

Sec. 2-13  Updating the program. 20 

     There shall be an annual review of this division, or as more often as required by either the 21 
Finance Director or the County Attorney to update the identity theft program when the passage 22 
of new laws, statutes or discovered risks that may affect the county's compliance with the 23 
Federal Trade Regulation requirements. 24 

Sec. 2-14  Program administration. 25 

(a)  The county identity theft prevention program shall be administered by the Finance  26 
Director who is responsible for the oversight, implementation and administration of the identity 27 
theft program. The County Attorney's office is responsible for reviewing reports prepared by the 28 
Finance Director for the purpose of monitoring compliance and recommending material changes 29 
to the program. The Board of County Commissioners shall approve any changes. 30 

     (b)     The Finance Director will report at least annually on compliance with the Federal Trade 31 
Commission regulations to the Board of County Commissioners, or its designee. The report shall 32 

19



6 
 

address the effectiveness of current policies and procedures, service provider arrangements and 1 
recommendations for material changes to the program. 2 

     (c)     The Finance Director is responsible for training employees responsible for or involved 3 
in opening a new covered account, restoring existing accounts or accepting payment for a 4 
covered account. 5 

Sec. 2-15  Vendor and service providers. 6 

     In the event that the county engages a service provider to perform an activity in connection 7 
with one or more covered accounts the Finance Director shall exercise the Finance Director’s 8 
discretion in reviewing such arrangements in order to ensure, to the best of the Finance 9 
Director’s ability, that the service provider's activities are conducted in accordance with policies 10 
and procedures, agreed upon by contract, that are designed to detect any red flags that may arise 11 
in the performance of the service provider's activities and take appropriate steps to prevent or 12 
mitigate theft. 13 

PART II.  .  The heading to Chapter 2, Article I of the Code of Ordinances, Currituck County, 14 
North Carolina is amended as follows: 15 

ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL 16 

DIVISION 1.  IN GENERAL 17 

PART II.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 18 
repealed. 19 

 20 
PART III.  This ordinance is effective upon its adoption. 21 
  22 
 23 
 ADOPTED this 3rd day of January, 2010. 24 
 25 
       ____________________________________ 26 
       O. Vance Aydlett, Jr., Chairman  27 
ATTEST: 28 
 29 
____________________________ 30 
Gwen H. Keene 31 
Clerk to the Board 32 
 33 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 34 
_____________________________ 35 
Donald I. McRee, Jr. 36 
County Attorney 37 
 38 

20



7 
 

Date adopted:  ________________ 1 
 2 
Motion to adopt by Commissioner ________________ 3 
Second by Commissioner _________________ 4 
Vote: _____ AYES   _____NAYS 5 

21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



1 
 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

 CONCESSION LICENSE AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT, to be effective as of the ______ day of _______________. 
_______, by and between the COUNTY OF CURRITUCK, NORTH CAROLINA, a body 
corporate and politic existing pursuant to the laws of the State of North Carolina, hereinafter 
“County”, and SILVER BLUE AND GOLD MAINTENANCE SERVICES, LLC., a North 
Carolina corporation, hereinafter “Licensee”; 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

 WHEREAS, County is the owner of a certain tract of land together with the buildings and 
other improvements thereon known as the Currituck Regional Airport (“Airport”) and has full 
right and authority to enter into leases, agreements, or contracts providing for the use of the 
space, area improvements or equipment at the Airport for aeronautical purposes or purposes 
incidental thereto; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Licensee is a Limited Liability Company, organized and created under the 
laws of the State of North Carolina, operating a business of commercial aviation activities for 
aeronautical purposes or purposes incidental thereto and desires to carry on such business at the 
Airport; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties do mutually undertake, promise and agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

PREMISES, PRIVILEGES, USES, RIGHTS, ACTIVITIES, EXCLUSIONS, AND 
CONDITIONS 

 
 For and in consideration of the terms, conditions and covenants of this Concession 
License Agreement to be performed by Licensor, all of which Licensee accepts, County hereby 
grants a license to Licensee, and Licensee accepts non-exclusive use of the the premises 
hereinafter set out for the purposes set forth herein. 
 
A. DESCRIPTION OF LICENSED PREMISES.  The premises (“Premises”) of which 
Licensee is granted non-exclusive use by this Concession License Agreement are described as 
follows: Being that property described on Exhibit A attached hereto, which is incorporated herein 
by reference, or such other areas to which Licensee may be relocated by County. 
 
B. DESCRIPTION OF GENERAL PRIVILEGES, USES AND RIGHTS.  County hereby 
provides to Licensee the following general privileges, uses and rights, all of which are and shall 
be subject to the terms, conditions and covenants hereinafter set forth and all of which shall be 
non-exclusive to Licensee. 
 

(1) The general use of all public airport facilities and improvements which are now 
or may hereafter be connected with said Airport, except as hereinafter provided, 
to be used by Licensee for aviation maintenance activities and operations, as 
herein defined. 

35



2 
 

 
 For the purpose of this Concession License Agreement “public airport facilities” 

shall include all necessary landing area appurtenances including but not limited 
to approach areas, runways, taxiways, aprons, aircraft and automobile parking 
area, roadways, sidewalks, navigational and navigational aids, lighting facilities, 
terminal facilities or other public appurtenance to said Airport. 

 
(2) The right of ingress to and egress from the Premises over and across public 

roadways serving the Airport for Licensee, its agents and servants, patrons and 
invitees, suppliers of service and furnishers of material. 

 
 Said right shall be subject to such ordinances, rules and regulations as now or 

may hereafter have application at the Airport. 
 

C. DESCRIPTION OF SPECIFIC PRIVILEGES, USES AND RIGHTS.  In addition to the 
general privileges, uses and rights hereinbefore described and without limiting the generality 
thereof, County hereby grants to Licensee, the non-exclusive right to engage in maintenance 
activities, as defined in Paragraph D, subject to the conditions and covenants hereinafter set out. 
 
D. DEFINITION OF MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES.  “Maintenance Activities” are hereby 
defined as those activities performed at or from the Airport, which involve the sale of aviation 
services for profit to the general public as set forth hereafter. 
 

• Conducting routine maintenance of aircraft 
• Conducting annual inspections as required by State and Federal agencies 
• Conducting engine, fuselage, avionics or other major overhaul services 
• As an accessory use to primary maintenance activities, providing for the retail 

sale of common aviation maintenance products such as oils, filters, fasteners, 
plugs, cleaning materials and other associated aviation-related products subject to 
frequent replacement and providing convenience to the tenants of Currituck 
Regional Airport  

 
 

E. CONCESSIONS EXCLUDED.  Licensee shall not engage in business operations or 
concessions of any other kind than those set forth in paragraph D above, unless approved in 
writing by County prior to the commencement thereof. 
 

  
F. CONDITION OF GRANTING LEASE.  The granting of this Concession License 
Agreement, its acceptance by Licensee, and the obligations of Licensee hereunder and the rights 
of Licensee are conditioned upon the following: 
 

(1) The rights to use the Airport facilities in common with others authorized so to do 
is, and shall be subject to and exercised only in accordance with the laws of the 
United States of America, the State of North Carolina, the County, and any other 
governmental entities with jurisdiction over the Airport; the rules and regulations 
promulgated by any of the foregoing with reference to aviation and air 
navigation; and all reasonable and applicable rules, regulations and ordinances of 
County, now in force or hereafter prescribed or promulgated. 

36



3 
 

 
 

ARTICLE II 
 

OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY 
 

A. AUTHORITY TO LICENSE.  County covenants that at the time of granting and delivery 
of this Concession License Agreement, it has full right and authority to grant a license for use of  
the Premises in accordance herewith. 

 
  County warrants to Licensee peaceful possession and quiet enjoyment of the Premises 
during the term hereof, upon Licensee’s performance of its convenants herein. 
 
B. OPERATION AS PUBLIC AIRPORT.  County shall, during the term hereof, operate and 
maintain the Airport as a public airport consistent with and pursuant to Assurances given by 
County to the United States Government under the Airport and Airways Development Act (P.L. 
91-258), as amended. 
 
C. REPAIR OF PREMISES.  County provides the Premises, and the same are accepted by 
Licensee in their “as is” condition.  County retains responsibility for repairs which are or become 
necessary to keep the Premises in a safe and serviceable condition, except as hereinafter stated in 
this Article II. 
 

 D. COUNTY DUTIES.  (1)  County shall schedule, supervise, and bear the cost of, mowing 
grassed areas, snow removal from all public areas of the Airport.  (2) County shall administer all 
hangar rentals and land leases for private hangar construction at the Airport.  (3) County shall 
schedule, supervise, and bear the cost of maintaining all County owned hangars, radios, ASOS, 
NDB, RTR, runway lights, the windsock, the rotating beacon, and all other County owned 
buildings or Airport premises and equipment not otherwise leased to or owned by private entities.  
(4) County shall prepare and submit annual Airport TIP grant requests to the Aviation Division of 
the North Carolina Department of Transportation.  (5) County shall reasonably maintain all public 
roads on the Airport which provide access to the Premises, in good and adequate condition, for 
use by cars and trucks; and shall provide access to the Premises over said roads at all times, 
except as County may modify access in accordance herewith or as County may deem it advisable 
to limit access in order to maintain the same. County reserves the right to relocate any and all 
existing roads and drives on the Airport provided, however, reasonable access to the Premises by 
reasonably adequate roadways are always maintained to the Airport. 
 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

OBLIGATIONS OF LICENSEE 
 

A. MAINTENANCE.  Licensee accepts the Premises in their existing (“as is”) condition.  
Licensee shall, on a day to day basis, maintain the County’s improvements and appurtenances 
under its use and control in a presentable condition, consistent with good business practice and 
equal in appearance and character to other similar improvements on the Airport.  Licensee shall 
notify County, in a timely manner, of any conditions of the premises that require repair so as to 
allow County to meet its obligations appearing in Article II hereinabove. 
 

37



4 
 

B. AVIATION SERVICES BY LICENSEE.  Licensee shall make aviation services 
available which meet the demands for such service at the Airport.   
 
 Licensee shall charge fair, reasonable and non-discriminatory prices for its goods and 
services sold, which prices shall be reasonably consistent with prices charged for comparable 
goods and services by fixed based operators located in the southeastern United States that are 
comparable to Licensee both in volume of sales and in goods and services offered. Licensee shall 
provide County from time to time, upon County’s request, copies of County’s list of charges.  
 
C. UTILITIES.  County shall assume and pay for all costs or charges for utility services 
furnished to Premises under the control of Licensee during the term hereof.  County shall provide 
utility line availability at the boundary line of the Premises and shall provide a paved access road 
to the Premises.   
 
D. TRASH, GARBAGE, ETC.  Licensee shall provide a complete and proper arrangement 
for the adequate sanitary handling and disposal, away from the Airport, of all trash, garbage and 
other refuse existing or caused as a result of the operation of its business.  Licensee shall provide 
and use suitable covered metal receptacles for all such garbage, trash and other refuse.  Piling of 
boxes, cartons, barrels or other similar items in an unsightly or unsafe manner on or about the 
Premises is forbidden. 
 
E. SIGNS.  Licensee shall not maintain or erect upon the Premises any billboards or 
advertising signs which are visible from the exterior of the improvements on the Premises without 
first obtaining the written approval of the County. 
 
F. FIELD USE CHARGES.  Nothing herein shall be deemed to relieve Licensee and its 
tenants, sublicensees, patrons, invitees, and others from field use charges, as may be levied 
generally by County directly upon the operation of aircraft. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

TERM OF LICENSE 
 

 The term of this Lease shall be from the effective date as specified on Page 1 hereof 
through the 31st day of December, 2011.   

38



5 
 

 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

FEES 
 

A. FEES.  The Licensee agrees to pay to County, during the initial term of this License 
Agreement, for the rights and privileges granted to it hereunder THREE THOUSAND EIGHT 
HUNDRED AND FORTY AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($3,840.00) due and payable as outlined in 
Exhibit B, “SILVER BLUE AND GOLD MAINTENANCE SERVICES, LLC LEASE.”  The 
License Fee herein includes Licensee’s annual rent for Hangar A-1-T, A-6-T and adjoining Office 
space 1, plus 2 tie-downs at the Airport under separate Hanger Lease Agreement the terms of 
which are incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

INSURANCE, INDEMNIFICATION, AND SUBROGATION  
 
A. INDEMNIFICATION.  County shall stand indemnified by the Licensee as herein 
provided.  Licensee is and shall be deemed to be an independent contractor and operator 
responsible to all parties for its acts and omissions; and County is and shall in no way be 
responsible therefor.  In the use of the Airport, in the erection of any improvements and in the 
exercise or enjoyment of the privileges herein granted, Licensee shall indemnify and save 
harmless the County from any and all losses that may proximately result to the County because of 
any negligence on the part of the Licensee, and shall indemnify County against any and all 
mechanic’s and materialmen’s liens or any other types of liens sought to be imposed upon the 
Premises.  Licensee has no right or authority to do anything which could result in a lien being 
filed. 
 
 Licensee shall promptly, upon the execution of this Concession License Agreement, 
provide insurance of the following type and amounts: 
 
 General Aggregate     $1,000,000 
 Personal and Advertising Injury    $1,000,000 
 Each Occurrence     $1,000,000 
 Damage to rented or licensed premises   $     50,000 
 (Each Occurrence) 
 Medical Expense (Any one person)   $       1,000 
 
 Licensee shall maintain all such insurance with insurance underwriters authorized to do 
business in the State of North Carolina satisfactory to County.   
 
 All of the said policies or certificates shall contain a provision that written notice of 
cancellation or of any material change in said policy by the insurer shall be delivered to County 
thirty (30) days in advance of the effective date thereof. 
 
 In order to assure indemnification from liability created by acts of Licensee, the policies 
or certificates of liability insurance shall name, as additional insured, the County of Currituck and 
its employees. 
 

39



6 
 

B. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION.  Neither County nor Licensee nor anyone claiming by, 
through, under, or in, their behalf shall have any claim, right of action or right of subrogation one 
against the other for or based upon any loss or damage caused by fire, explosion or other insured 
casualty (not limited to the foregoing) relating to the Premises or to any property upon, in, or 
about the Premises, whether such fire, explosion or other insured casualty shall arise from the 
negligence of County or Licensee, their respective agents, representatives or employees, or 
otherwise. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

TERMINATION, CANCELLATION, ASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER, AND SUSPENSION 
 

A. TERMINATION.  This Concession License Agreement shall expire at the end of the full 
term hereof, and Licensee shall have no further right or interest in any of the Premises subsequent 
thereto, except as provided in Article VIII. 
 
B. CANCELLATION BY LICENSEE.  This Concession License Agreement shall be 
subject to cancellation by Licensee upon the occurrence of one or more of the following events: 
 

1. The permanent abandonment of the Airport as an air transportation facility. 
 
2. The lawful assumption by the United States Government, or any authorized 

agency thereof, of the operation, control or use of the Airport, or any substantial 
part or parts thereof, in such a manner as substantially to restrict Licensee for a 
period of at lease ninety (90) days from operating thereon. 

 
3. Issuance by any court of competent jurisdiction of any injunction in any way 

preventing or restraining the use of the Airport, and the remaining in force of 
such injunction for a period of at lease ninety (90) days. 

 
4. The default by County in the performance of any covenant or agreement herein 

required to be performed by County and the failure of County to remedy such 
default for a period of sixty (60) days after receipt from Licensee of written 
notice by registered mail to remedy the same, unless such remedy requires in 
excess of said period to complete, in which event, the remedy must commence 
within sixty days and must reasonably continue thereafter. 

 
 Licensee may exercise such right of termination by written notice delivered by registered 
mail to County at any time after the lapse of the applicable periods of time, and this lease shall 
terminate as of that date.  Rental due hereunder shall be payable through the date of said 
termination and the vacation of the Premises. 
 
C. CANCELLATION BY COUNTY.  This Concession License Agreement shall be subject 
to cancellation by County in the event that Licensee shall: 
 

1. Fail to pay County the whole or any part of the amounts due hereunder for a 
period of ten (10) days after the date such payments become due; or 

 
2. File a voluntary petition in bankruptcy; or 
 
3. Make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; or 

40



7 
 

 
4. Have a Receiver appointed for it by a court of competent jurisdiction; or 
 
5. Abandon or vacate the Premises; or 
 
6. Discontinue Commercial Aviation Activities as set forth in Article III, Paragraph 

B for a period of more than one hundred eighty (180) days (in the aggregate) in 
any period of twelve (12) consecutive months; or 

 
7. Fail to perform any of the other covenants and/or conditions required herein 

(except rental payments) to be kept and performed by Licensee, and the lack of 
cure thereof for a period of thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from 
County of said failure. 

 
8. Sublease of hangar spaces for storage of aircraft that are not awaiting 

maintenance.  
 

 In any of aforesaid events, County may take immediate possession of the Premises and 
remove Licensee’s effects, without being deemed guilty of trespass.  Upon written notice of 
termination provided by County in accordance herewith or upon vacation by Licensee and re-
entry by County, this Concession License Agreement shall terminate.  Any fees due hereunder 
shall be payable to said date of termination or to said date of vacation of the Premises and re-
entry by County, whichever event occurs later in time. 
 
 Failure of County to declare this Concession License Agreement terminated upon the 
breach by Licensee for any of the reasons set out shall not operate as a waiver of County’s right 
to declare this License terminated by reason of such breach or any subsequent violation of the 
terms of this Concession License Agreement. 
 
D. ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER.  Licensee shall not at any time during the term of 
this Concession License Agreement, either directly or indirectly, assign, hypothecate or transfer 
its interest in this agreement or any interest therein without the consent of the County.  
 
E. SUSPENSION OF LICENSE.  During any time of war or national emergency, County 
shall have the right to lease or otherwise provide the landing area or any part thereof to the United 
States Government for military use.  If any such lease or other agreement is executed, any 
provisions of this agreement which are inconsistent with the provisions of the lease or other 
agreement with the Government, shall be suspended, provided that the term of this lease shall be 
extended by the amount of the period of suspension. 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

PREMISES AND PERSONAL PROPERTY 
 

A. GENERAL.  At the termination of this Concession License Agreement for any reason 
except as outlined in Paragraph B, below, County shall be entitled, at its election, to have the 
Premises returned to it including any improvements which have been constructed by Licensee 
  
B. PERSONAL PROPERTY.  Title to personal property shall at all times during the term of 
this Concession License Agreement remain in County and Licensee as their individual interests 
may appear at the time of execution of this agreement.  Upon termination of this Concession 

41



8 
 

Licenses Agreement for any cause, Licensee shall remove all of its personal property from the 
Premises within thirty (30) days after said termination.  If Licensee fails to remove said personal 
property, County may thereafter remove said property at Licensee’s expense. 
 

ARTICLE IX 
 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

A. FAIRNESS IN DEALINGS.  County shall not require a greater level of service or 
performance from Licensee than that which is required from any other occupant of the Airport 
providing some or all of the same services (“Competitor”), nor shall County grant terms more 
favorable than those contained in this Concession License Agreement to any other Competitor.  It 
is the intention of the parties that no Competitor, whether presently occupying the Airport or 
occupying the Airport hereafter, have an unfair advantage by paying a lesser rental than Licensee 
or being provided with terms or treatment which are directly more favorable to Competitor than 
those provided to or required of Licensee. 
 
B. ATTORNEY’S FEES.  In any action brought by either party hereto for the enforcement 
of the obligation(s) of the other, the successful party shall be entitled to recover interest and 
reasonable attorney’s fees. 
 
C. TAXES.  Licensee shall pay any taxes or assessments which may be lawfully levied 
against Licensee’s property and its occupancy or use of the Premises or any improvements placed 
thereon as a result of Licensee’s occupancy. 
 
D. SUBORDINATION OF LICENSE.  This License is and shall be subordinate to the 
provisions of any existing or future agreement between County and the United States relative to 
the operation or maintenance of the Currituck Regional Airport. 
 
E. BINDING EFFECT AND COMPLETE TERMS.  The terms, covenants, conditions and 
agreements herein contained shall be binding upon and enure to the benefit of and shall be 
enforceable by County and Licensee and by their respective successors and assigns.  All 
negotiations and agreements of County and Licensee are merged herein.  No modification hereof 
or other purported agreement of the parties shall be enforceable unless the same is in writing and 
signed by the County and Licensee. 
 
F. FORCE MAJEURE.  In the event that either party hereto shall be delayed or hindered in 
or prevented from the performance of any act required hereunder by reason of strikes, lock-outs, 
labor troubles, inability to procure materials, failure of power, restrictive governmental laws or 
regulations, riots, insurrection, war or other reason of a like nature not the fault of the party 
delayed in performing work or doing acts required under the terms of this License, then 
performance of such act shall be excused for the period of the delay and the period for the 
performance of any act shall be extended for a period equivalent to the period of such delay. 
 
G.         CONSTRUCTION OF LICENSE.  This Concession License Agreement shall not be 
construed more strictly against either party regardless of which party is responsible for the 
preparation of the same. 
 
H. EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS AND RIGHTS OF WAY.  The License for use of the 
Premises is granted subject to all easements, restrictions and rights of way legally affecting the 
Premises. 

42



9 
 

 
I. CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE.  Licensee shall not conduct its business at the Airport 
or act in a manner which violates Title VI or Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended, nor shall Licensee knowingly discriminate by segregation or otherwise against any 
person or class of persons by reason of age, sex, race, religion, color, national origin or handicap, 
whether in the performance of this agreement in the provision of the Commercial Aviation 
Activities or otherwise.  Licensee shall maintain open hiring and employment practices and shall 
receive applications for employment in compliance with all requirements of applicable federal, 
state and local laws and regulations issued pursuant thereto relating to nondiscriminatory hiring 
and employment practices.  Licensee shall serve its customers at the Airport without unlawful 
discrimination as to any person’s age, sex, race, religion, color, national original or handicap. 
 
 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

43



10 
 

 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals.  
 
 
        COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
 
 
       By: _________________________ 
                
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________  
Clerk to the Board 
 
 

(COUNTY SEAL)  SILVER BLUE AND GOLD 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES, LLC, 
LICENSEE 

 
  
       By: ________________________ 
 
       Its:  ________________________ 
 
ATTEST: 
________________________ 
Secretary   
     
 (CORPORATE SEAL) 
 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
 
I, _______________________________, a Notary Public of the aforesaid County and State, do 
hereby certify that _______________________________ personally appeared before me this day 
and acknowledged that she is the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners of the County of 
Currituck and that by authority duly given and as the act of the county, the foregoing instrument 
was signed in its name by its ________________________, sealed with its corporate seal and 
attested by her as its Clerk to the Board. 
 
WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal, this the ____ day of ___________________, 2010. 
 
 
       
 ___________________________ 
        Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: _______________ 
 

44



11 
 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF ______________ 
 
I, _________________________________, a Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, 
certify that ___________________________, personally appeared before me this day and 
acknowledged that he is  ___________________________________, and that by authority duly 
given and as the act of the _____________________________, the foregoing instrument was 
signed in its name by _____________________________. 
 
WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal, this _____ day of _____________, 2010. 
 
 

     
                            
____________________________ 

        Notary Public 
 
My Commission Expires: _____________________ 
 
 
 
 

45



12 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

 
 
 

46



13 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

SILVER BLUE AND GOLD MAINTENANCE SERVICES, LLC LEASE  
 
 
 
 

CURRITUCK REGIONAL AIRPORT 

HANGAR LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
This lease, made and entered into this 3rd day of August, 2010 by and between 

Currituck County, North Carolina, a body corporate and politic existing pursuant to the 
laws of the State of North Carolina, (Lessor), and SILVER BLUE AND GOLD 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES, LLC. (Lessee); 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

  The Lessor hereby leases to the Lessee and covenants to keep the Lessee in quiet possession of the 
following described premises, to wit; 

 
 Space located within the Lessor’s designated hangar area at the Currituck 
Regional Airport (Airport), designated as Hangar A-1-T, A-6-T and adjoining Office, 
plus 2 tie-downs (the Premises) as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto and subject to the 
terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 
 The Premises herein demised shall be used solely as aviation aircraft activity 
storage space subject to the conditions, limitation, and restrictions contained elsewhere in 
this Lease.   

 
I.  TERM: 

 
 The term of this Lease shall be from the 1st day of January 2011 and end December 31, 2011.   
 

II.  PAYMENT: 
 
2.1 The Lessee shall pay Lessor the sum of Three Hundred and Twenty 

Dollars ($320.00) per month, due by the first calendar day of each month for an annual 
total lease amount of Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Forty Dollars ($3,840.00).  

 
2.2 In the event Lessee shall fail to pay the rent set forth hereunder, or shall 

fail to keep or perform any of the covenants, agreements or conditions of this Lease for a 
period of thirty (30) days, then Lessor may terminate this agreement and repossess the 
premises and retain any deposits made with the execution of this agreement. Otherwise, 
in the event Lessee performs all of the terms of said lease and pays all rents due 
hereunder, then at the end of the term Lessor shall refund to Lessee any deposit made 
with the execution of this lease agreement. 

 
2.3 Lessee may be required to provide a damage deposit in an amount equal to 

two (2) monthly rental payments. Any such deposit will be held by the Lessor until the 
termination of the lease and shall be used to offset damages that may occur during the 

OFFICE USE ONLY 
 

__Rules & Regulations 
__Certificate(s) of Insurance 
 

47



14 
 

tenant’s occupancy of the premises. Failure of the Lessor to require such a deposit at the 
execution of the lease will not limit the right to establish such a requirement during the 
lease term. 

 
III. LEASE PROVISIONS 
 
3.1 Lessee agrees to take good care of the Premises and to return the same at 

the expiration of the term in as good condition as received, ordinary wear, tear and 
natural decay excepted. If destruction of the Premises, or any part thereof, shall occur 
during the term of this Lease (and the destruction is not the result of actions or fault by 
the Lessee), so as to make the premises unfit for the uses described in this Lease, the 
Lessee may surrender and cancel this Lease. 

a. Lessor acknowledges needed improvements in Office Space areas of the 
Premises and hereby warrants that necessary maintenance, cleaning and repair of the 
Office Space facilities, including replacement or repair of the heat pump, replacement or 
repair of ceiling tiles, and general cleaning of the Office Space shall be performed in a 
timely manner following the execution of this agreement.   

 
b. Upon completion of stated improvements by Lessor in the Office Space 

area of the Premises, Lessee agrees to maintain the Office Space area in accordance with 
good housekeeping practices and return the space in as good condition as received, 
ordinary wear, tear and natural decay excepted.    

 
c. Furnishings within the Office Space are of the Premises are the property of 

the Lessor; Lessee is permitted to use the furnishings and accept them in ‘as is’ condition 
and return said furnishings to the Lessor upon termination in as good condition as 
received, ordinary wear, tear and natural decay excepted.    
 

 
3.2 It is agreed and understood that the Premises are to be used solely as 

maintenance and repair facilities with ancillary retail sales, and for no other purpose, 
unless approved by the Lessor in writing. Any other provision of this Lease 
notwithstanding, in the event of any violation of the provisions of this paragraph on the 
part of the Lessee, the Lessor shall have the right to cancel this Lease forthwith and 
without notice. 

 
a. The Premises are leased and intended for the private use of the Lessee in 

providing a maintenance and repair service shop.  The Lessee is permitted to provide 
customary retail sales provided the retail sales portion of the Lessee’s operation can be 
reasonable considered an accessory use, and not a primary use, of the Premises. 
However, the Lessor may consider allowing certain further commercial uses of the leased 
premises if the terms and conditions relating to such use are set forth in a Rider to this 
lease and meet all other County rules and regulations. 

 
b. The Premises are to be used by the Lessee subject to the provisions 

outlined in section 3.2 and 3.2(a) above. At no time shall the Premises be utilized for 
storage of aircraft not under repair by Lessee for a period longer than two (2) weeks prior 
to, or immediately after, repair services are rendered by Lessee. Any proposed change to 
this subsection shall be presented to the Airport Manager for written approval.  

 
c. Lessee agrees that use of the premises shall be in accordance with federal, 

state and local laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, those pertaining to fire 
and safety, as well as the Currituck Regional Airport Rules and Regulations. 

48



15 
 

 
d. Lessee’s exclusive use is restricted to the Premises designated herein and 

does not apply to ramp, apron or taxiway areas. All such exterior areas are common use 
areas available to all other tenants on the airport. Lessee agrees that Lessee’s aviation 
activity equipment shall not be parked or positioned in such exterior areas so as to block, 
limit or restrict the use of the ramps, aprons or taxiways by other airport tenants or uses. 
 

e. Lessee will not be permitted to add electrical service to the Premises or to 
otherwise alter the electrical service provided without the written consent of the Lessor. 
Space heaters are prohibited within the Premises office and hangar spaces.  

 
f. Storage of aviation repair and maintenance equipment and accessories 

registered for hangar will be permitted. 
 

g. Installation of a power (if electrical service is added) or hand winch to 
assist with hangaring of aviation activity equipment is permissible.  

 
h. Lessee will be permitted to keep and store small quantities of lubricants, 

cleaners and other similar materials within the hangar space, provided all flammable 
materials are kept in fire retardant containers. The hangar space shall not be used for 
storage of large amounts of fuel nor as a fueling area for the resident aircraft.   

 
i. Lessee will not be permitted to perform repair service on automobiles or 

automotive equipment of any kind in the Premises. 
 
j. Lessee shall not store any material or object not directly related to the 

aviation repair and maintenance equipment, unless the storage of such prohibited items or 
materials has been approved by the Lessor in writing. This prohibits the storage (without 
permission) of furniture, inoperative and unregistered aircraft, utility trailers and all other 
similar materials. 

 
k. Lessee shall not perform painting operations of any kind within the 

Premises.  
 
l. Installation or use of any hazardous devices, including but not limited to 

space heaters and engine heaters shall be prohibited in the Premises, unless specifically 
authorized by the Lessor. 

 
m. Washing aircraft or aviation activity equipment will not be permitted in 

the Premises or within the hangar area without the express permission of the Lessor. 
 
n. Installation of furniture or appliances that are not required under permitted 

uses specified above or for which written permission has not been granted by the Lessor 
shall be prohibited. This prohibits sleeping couches, cots, beds, hot plates, stoves or other 
cooking devices, unless specifically authorized by the Lessor. 

 
o. Parking of vehicles for Lessee, customers or employees of Lessee shall be 

provided in marked spaces outside the fence directly west of the Premises.  In no case 
shall the Lessee, their agents or assigns park automobiles on the apron or runway 
surfaces.  Temporary access for delivery of machinery, parts, lubricants or other bulk 
product for the Lessee’s normal business operation is permitted.  

 
 

49



16 
 

 
IV.  GENERAL PROVISIONS: 
 
4.1 It is agreed that the demised sites are accepted in their “as is” condition. 

Except as established in the preceding paragraph, Lessor assumes no responsibility as to 
the condition of the demised premises nor shall it assume responsibility for the 
maintenance, upkeep or repairs which might become necessary to keep the Premises in a 
safe and serviceable condition. 

 
4.2 The Premises shall not be sublet or the term in whole or in part assigned, 

transferred or set over by the act of the Lessee, by process or operation of law or in any 
other manner whatsoever without the prior written consent of the Lessor. 

 
4.3 Lessee not make any alterations, changes or additions to the Premises 

including, but not limited to, the replacement or change of locks for the Premises. All 
requests for exterior signage for the Lessee’s operation must be approved by the Lessor 
prior to installation and in accordance with County rules and regulations.  

 
4.4 Should the Lessee continue to occupy the Premises after the expiration of 

the term of this Lease or after a forfeiture occurred, whether with or against the consent 
of the Lessor, such tenancy shall be month to month but in all other respects shall be in 
accordance with the terms of this Lease. 

 
4.5 The Lessor shall not be liable for any damage, either to person or property, 

sustained by the Lessee or by other persons due to the building or any part thereof or any 
appurtenances thereof becoming out of repair or due to the happening of any accident in 
or about the building or due to any act or neglect of any tenant or occupant of the 
building or of any other person. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the 
Lessor shall not be liable for damage caused by water, wind or electrical causes or the 
negligence of contractors, employees, agents or licensees of the Lessor unless provided to 
be the gross negligence of the Lessor. 

 
4.6 The Lessee agrees to indemnify and save the Lessor, its officers, agents 

and employees harmless from any liability, including, but not limited to claims, 
judgments, fines, costs and attorney’s fees to persons or property resulting from or arising 
out of the Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Premises. 

 
4.7 This Lease, at the option of the Lessor, shall be void and forfeited in case 

of any violation of any agreement herein contained. This covenant is not to be considered 
or construed as a penalty, but shall be punctually enforced and the Lessor’s failure to 
enforce the same with respect to any violation shall not constitute a waiver of the right to 
enforce the same with respect to any other violation. 

 
4.8 The Lessee agrees that the Lessor shall have the right to enter the demised 

premises at any time for the purpose of making inspections thereof and to make such 
repairs or alterations as are, in the opinion of the Lessor, desirable or necessary and to 
take such materials into the premises for the safe and economical accomplishment of said 
purposes without in any way being deemed guilty of an actual or constructive eviction of 
the Lessee.  

 
4.9 Lessee shall maintain an insurance policy for any aviation activity 

equipment placed within the leased premises in full force and effect for the period 
covered by the Lease and any renewals filed with the County. The insurance policy 

50



17 
 

(policies) must identify the Lessor as an additional insured. A copy of the insurance 
policy (policies) or certificate of insurance must be filed with the Currituck County 
Finance Department within 30 days of the signing of the lease. The insurance will meet 
the specifications set forth below.   

 
The amounts of such insurance shall not be less than the following: 
 
Bodily Injury  $   100,000 

 Property  $1,000,000 
 Each Accident $1,000,000 
 
             V.  SUBLEASE/ASSIGNMENT:  
 
 The space hereby leased will not be subleased by Lessee nor will this Lease be 
assigned without the express approval of the Lessor.  
 
 VI. NOTICES: 
 
 Notices to the Lessor provided for herein shall be sufficient if sent by registered 
mail, postage prepaid, or hand delivered, addressed to Currituck County Attorney, P.O. 
Box 39, Currituck, NC  27929 and notices to the Lessee shall be sufficient if sent 
registered mail, postage prepaid, or hand delivered, addressed to SILVER BLUE AND 
GOLD MAINTENANCE SERVICES, LLC, C/O Savannah Koneval, Silver Blue and 
Gold Maintenance Services LLC, 113 Airport Rd, Edenton NC 27954 
or to such other respective addresses as the parties may designate to each other in writing 
from time to time.  Lessee shall notify the Currituck County Legal Department of any 
change of address within thirty (30) days. 

51



18 
 

 
 VII.  TERMINATION: 
 
 This agreement may be terminated by the Lessee upon thirty days (30) written 
notice; and upon sixty days (60) notice by the Lessor.  In addition, Lessor may terminate 
this agreement during the course of monthly term upon the occurrence of any of the 
following which shall constitute a breach of this Lease by Lessee: Rent is not paid by the 
20th of any month; Lessee has failed to comply with any condition of this lease and has 
not reasonably corrected the deficiency upon notice by Lessor. In the event of such 
breach, Lessor shall notify Lessee of termination in writing. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

 
              CURRITUCK COUNTY 

ATTEST: 
_______________________ BY: __________________________ (SEAL) 
Clerk to the Board  Daniel F. Scanlon, II, County Manager 
  
 LESSEE – SILVER BLUE AND GOLD MAINTENANCE 
SERVICES, LLC. 
(County Seal) 

BY: __________________________  
   
 __________________________ 
 Print Name 
  
 __________________________ 
 Telephone Number 
 
 

Please list any and all owners of this airplane listed on plane title that will have access to 
the premises: 
Name: ____________________________ Name: ___________________________ 
Address: __________________________ Address: _________________________ 
 
Name: ____________________________ Name: ___________________________ 
Address: __________________________ Address: _________________________ 
 
Name: ____________________________ Name: ___________________________ 
Address: __________________________ Address: _________________________ 
 
Name: ____________________________ Name: ___________________________ 
Address: __________________________ Address: _________________________ 
 

 

52



AIRPORT ADVISORY BOARD 
 

 
 MEMBERS              TERMS 

 
District  1 
 Gary Bryan       1/-10 - 1/13 
 281 Southend Road            Appointed 1/09 to fill unexpired term 
 Knotts Island, NC  27950 
 Home-429-3535 
 Garyandtracy2@verizon.net 
 
District 2 
 John Snowden, III      12/09 – 12/12 
 PO Box 752              Appointed 2/09 to fill unexpired term 
 Maple, NC  27956 
 Cell 267-3332 
 john.snowden@currituckonline.com 
 
District 3 
 Jerry Malesky       12/09 - 12/12  
 299 Green View Road            Appointed 7/09 to fill unexpired term 
 Moyock, NC  27958 
 Home-435-2774 
 Cell-757-580-8845 
 malesky@centurylink.net 
  
District  4 
 Ed Ish        3/08 – 1/11 
 112 Teal Drive             Appointed 1/09 to fill unexpired term  
 Currituck, NC 27929 
 Home-232-0394 
 seaclusion1203@aol.com 
 
District 5 
 Denise Hall       1/10 – 1/13   

174 Old Jury Road             Appointed 2/09 to fill unexpired term  
Moyock, NC  27958 
Home-232-0711 
Cell-757-676-6096 
kellynsetters@aol.com 

           
At Large  
 David Messina       3/08 – 3/11 
 101 White Heron Drive            Appointed 1/09 to fill unexpired term 
 Currituck, NC  27929 
 Home-232-2647 
 Cell-757-434-1210 
 mercury@inteliport.com 
  
At Large  
 Marion Gilbert       1/10 – 1/13 

107 Fargo Court          Appointed 2/09 to fill unexpired term 
 Moyock, NC  27958 
 Home-232-3724 
 Cell-757-536-3724 
 mgilbert@earl-ind.com 
 marfromva@aol.com 
   

53



Ex  Officio Members Roger Lambertson, Airport Manager        Commissioner  John Rorer 
 
 
 
             

54



AIRPORT ADVISORY BOARD
3 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Gary Bryan District 1 1/2010 1/2013

John Snowden District 2 1/2010 1/2013

Jerry Malesky District 3 1/2010 1/2013

Ed Ish* District 4 Etheridge March 2008 January 2011

Denise Hall District 5 1/2010 1/2013

David Messina** At-Large Martin March 2008 March 2011

Marion Gilbert*** At-Large O'Neal 1/2010 1/2013

55



tCY i t t

APPLICATION FOR ADVISORY BOARDS COMMITTEES

Date o2lgd

Name

Address c 3 tllli4Sf3QrGG 59tlG

CtcZr6 1L 717g

Phone 02 7 7

Boards or Committeeson which you would like to serve

Please check

ABC Board

Agricultural Advisory Board

iAirport Advisory Authority

oard
ofAdjustment

Economic Development Board

Game Commission

Jury Commission

Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board

Library Board

Lrlursing Home Advisory Committee

Planning Board

Senior Citizens Advisory Board
Social Services Board

Recreation Advisory Board

Whalehead Preservation Trust

Workforce Development Board

and reasons you would like to serve

to County Managers O
PO Box 39

Currituck NC 27929

o 1Goii
L

56



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
December 6, 2010  
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 5:30 p.m. for a reception for 
out going and newly elected Commissioners. 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its regularly 
scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in the 
Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members present:  
Chairman O’Neal, Commissioners Etheridge, Gregory, Rorer, Nelms, 
Aydlett and Taylor.  
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
The Reverend Dan Bergey, New Life Church, was present for 
the invocation. 

Approval of November 15, 2010 Minutes   

Commissioner Etheridge moved to approve.  Commissioner 
Aydlett seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Recognition of out going Commissioners Taylor, Gregory and 
Nelms   

Chairman O’Neal along with Commissioners Rorer, Aydlett and 
Etheridge recognized the out going Commissioners Taylor, 
Gregory and Nelms and commended them for their service to 
Currituck County. 

The Honorable Ray Matusko, Clerk of Superior Court,to give 
the oath of office for newly elected Commissioners 

The Honorable Ray Matusko, Clerk of Superior Court, 
presented the oath of office to newly elected Commissioners 
Petrey, Gilbert and Martin. 

Election of Chairman   

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, presided over the election of 
Chairman. 

Commissioner Rorer nominated Commissioner Aydlett.  
Commissioner O’Neal seconded the nomination. Nominations 
were closed. Commissioner Aydlett was selected Chairman by 
acclamation. 

Election of Vice-Chairman  

Chairman Aydlett opened the floor for nominations. 
57



December 6, 2010 BOC Meeting   2 

Commissioner Petrey nominated Commissioner Rorer.  
Commissioner Etheridge seconded the nomination.  
Nominations were closed.  Commissioner Rorer was selected 
Vice-Chairman by acclamation. 

Recognition of out going Chairman O'Neal   

The Board of Commissioners commended Commissioner O’Neal 
for his efforts as Chairman for the last year. 

Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner O’Neal moved to amend the agenda by deleting 
Item 13 and adding Item 13A Voting Delegate for NCACC 
Legislative Goals Conference and add to consent agenda 
Resolution of appreciation for John Forbes, and Public 
Official Bond for Sheriff.  Commissioner Etheridge seconded 
the motion. Motion carried. 

Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on 
the regular agenda, please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Chairman Aydlett opened the public comment period. 

Elizabeth Vaughan, requested support for Operation Santa at 
the Social Services Department. 

Hank Harrelson, expressed his problems with Mediacom and 
not having a local news channel.  

Vic Culbertson, Moyock, congratulated the new Board 
members. 

Karen Whitfield, Corolla, expressed her concern with the 
Corolla Small Village Plan. 

Jay Bender, opposes the Small Village Plan. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Aydlett closed 
the public comment period. 

 

Consideration and Action:  PB 00-15 Soundside Recycling: 
Renewal of a special use permit for a demolition landfill 
operation and a mulch sales stockpile area located at 7565 
Caratoke Highway, Tax Map 110, Parcels 38 and 39, Poplar 
Branch Township. 

58



December 6, 2010 BOC Meeting   3 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making statements. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 
On May 7, 2007 the Board of Commissioners granted Soundside 
Recycling a six month extension of condition #2 of their 
Special Use Permit (SUP) for a Demolition Landfill. This 
condition requires the entire operation be moved east of 
the VEPCO main power transmission line easement, 
approximately 1,000’ from Caratoke Highway. 
 
At the December 3, 2007 Board of Commissioners work 
session, Staff was directed to meet with Mr. Racy Newbern 
to develop a reasonable schedule for compliance with 
condition #2 of the SUP.  Additionally, the Board requested 
Staff work with Mr. Newbern to develop alternatives to any 
SUP conditions that may be affected by State permit 
requirements.  Mr. Newbern is working with the State to get 
his permits.  Staff has not developed or recommended any 
alternatives since a new permit has yet to be issued by the 
state. This special use permit is set to expire on December 
5, 2010 and the applicant is requesting a renewal.  
 
Conditions previously included on the permit are as 
follows: 
 

1. The applicant shall maintain the development 
strictly in accordance with the plan submitted to 
and approved by the Board of Commissioners, a 
copy of which is filed in the office of the 
Planning and Inspections Department. 

 Approximate Acreages: 
 Recycling Area   3.4 acres 
 Compost Area   2.0 acres 
 Hurricane Storage Area 8.5 acres  
 
2. That the special use permit shall be valid until 

December 5, 2010 with the condition that 
operation be moved east of the power transmission 
lines as approved in the attached site plan by 
June 4, 2007. 

3. If any of the conditions affixed hereto or any 
part thereof shall be held invalid or void, then 
this permit shall be void and of no effect. 

4. That the mulch sales storage area not exceed 6’ 
in height, 100’ in length and 60’ in width. 

5. That no demolition storage pile areas exceed 15’ 
in height. 

59



December 6, 2010 BOC Meeting   4 

6. That the applicant maintain substantially high 
berms to effectively conceal all debris piles 
from public view from Caratoke Highway (US 158).  
The height of these berms shall be a minimum of 
12 feet but may be higher depending on the height 
of debris piles. 

7. That the berm height be uniform, complete, and 
continuous. 

8. That the applicant will be permitted one (1) 
permanent sign and one (1) temporary sign for the 
business. 

9. That no transportation equipment (tractors or 
trailers with or without debris) be parked or 
stored outside the designated area as shown on 
the attached site plan. 

10. That the following comments from the county’s 
Fire Marshall be incorporated within this 
approval: 
a. No Smoking except in designated areas is 

allowed.  Signage should indicate 
appropriate areas. 

b. Fire operations will require an all weather 
surface and 20’ access width to all areas of 
the compound.  Would recommend 2 
ingress/egress points. 

c. Each fuel-fired vehicle shall be equipped 
with a 2-A:20-B:C or higher fire 
extinguisher. 

d. A fire hydrant must be within 400’ of all 
portions of any structure.   

e. Plant growth must be maintained in order to 
prevent wind blown debris escaping the site. 

11. That the hours of operation be set at 7:30 a.m. 
to 5 p.m. weekdays and 7:30 a.m. to 12 noon on 
Saturdays with no operations allowed on Sundays. 

12. That all material must be kept on site at all 
times and that necessary steps are taken to keep 
material from blowing off the property. 

13. Suggested Staff Findings of Fact: 
 

1. OWNER    APPLICANT 
 HD(Racy)Newbern IV   HD/Marlene Newbern 

P. O. Box 277   PO Box 176 
Powells Pt, NC  27966 Aydlett, NC  27916 
(252) 491-5744   (252) 453-3032 

60



December 6, 2010 BOC Meeting   5 

2. The tract is located on the east side of 
Caratoke Hwy. approximately 200' south of 
the intersection with SR 1156 (North River 
Rd.) in Powells Point, Tax Map 110, parcels 
38 & 39, Poplar Branch (ML) Township. 

3. The property is being utilized as a 
recycling center. 

4. The applicant received the original special 
use permit on May 1, 2000 and a renewals on 
April 16, 2001, June 17, 2002, and June 6, 
2005 to temporarily store untreated 
demolition waste (treated & untreated wood 
products, cardboard, plastic, vinyl, 
wallboard, metal and shingles) on two (2) 
acres of land in an "Agriculture" zoning 
district which is permitted in an A district 
with a SUP. 

5. The applicant currently recycles demolition 
waste using a tub grinder.  Since the UDO 
does not specifically list this use in the 
Table of Permissible Uses, the staff 
determined this use had impacts similar to a 
demolition landfill which required a special 
use permit in an "A" zoning district. 

6. According to county Zoning Maps, the nearest 
dwelling to the existing recycling area is 
approximately 300 feet west. 

7. The mulch stockpile sales area will be 
located east of the power line right-of-way. 

8. No burning of waste will be permitted on the 
site unless a special use permit is granted 
for an incinerator. Further, all necessary 
state permits must be obtained prior to 
burning waste. 

9. The site is surrounded by the following land 
uses: 
West (Front)Commercial(Antique Store)-zoned "GB" 
East (Rear)Farmland - zoned "A" 
North (Side)Farmland(agricultural operations)-zoned "A" 
South (Side)Farmland - zoned "A"  

10. The 1990 Land Use Plan classifies this land 
as "Limited Transition". 

11. The proposed site is located along a Minor 
Arterial in the County's Thoroughfare Plan. 

61



December 6, 2010 BOC Meeting   6 

12. According to the application, the storage 
area will not increase the county's ability 
to provide facilities in anyway. 

Chairman Aydlett opened the public hearing. 

Racy Newbern, applicant, stated that he has applied for his 
state permit. 

There being no further comments, Chairman Aydlett closed 
the public hearing. 

Commissioner Rorer moved to grant a one year extension with 
the following conditions: 

All previously approved conditions shall be included in the 
permit; All state permits needed to move the operation east 
of the power transmission lines shall be issued within one 
year; Quarterly progress reports shall be filed with the 
Planning Department; and, the applicant shall be in 
compliance with all county ordinances within 90 days.  
Commissioner Martin seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

Presentation on Currituck County Rural Center   

Terry Temple, Rural Center Director, made a presentation to 
the Board about the 105 acre Rural Center and all the 
programs that are offered at the center. 

Commissioner O’Neal requested staff to have a sign placed 
on the main road to let people know where the Center is 
located. 

 

 

Update on Emergency Management  

Rebecca Christenbury, Program Manager, for Emergency 
Management, presented a review of accomplishments last year 
in Emergency Management and reviewed the future goals of 
the Department.  

Appointment to Walnut Island Sanitary District Board   

Commissioner Rorer moved to appoint Kay Hannah.  
Commissioner Etheridge seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 

Appointment to Workforce Development Board  

62



December 6, 2010 BOC Meeting   7 

Deleted 

Appointment of Delegate to the NCACC Legislative Goals 
Conference. 

Commissioner O’Neal moved to appoint Commissioner 
Etheridge.  Commissioner Rorer seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried.  

Consent Agenda: 
1. Budget Amendments 
2. Declare Surplus property for Fire/EMS 

Department 
3. Amendment to Policies and Procedures for use of 

Cooperative Extension Center 
4. Resolution of appreciation for John Forbes, Jr. 
5. Approval of Public Official Bond for the 

Sheriff. 
 
Commissioner Rorer moved to approve.  Commissioner Martin 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense   

 Decrease 
Expense  

       
10512-545000  Contract Services   $                       700    
10512-557100  Software License Fess   $                       300    
10512-536000  Uniforms     $                  1,000  
       
10510-554000  Insurance & Bonds   $                       305    
10510-506000  Health Insurance     $                     305  
       
     $                    1,305    $                  1,305  
       
Explanation: 
 

Animal Control (10512); Sheriff (10510) - To transfer budgeted funds for increases 
in contract costs and for the Sheriff public official bond that renews every election 

63



December 6, 2010 BOC Meeting   8 

 cycle. 
Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense   

 Decrease 
Expense  

       
10950-585003  Food Bank   $                    2,500    
10446-526200  Promotional Efforts     $                  2,500  
       
     $                    2,500    $                  2,500  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Agency Appropriations (10950); Public Information (10446) - To eliminate to County 
Employee Christmas luncheon and increase appropriations to the County Food 
Banks. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense   

 Decrease 
Expense  

       
10752-519700  HCCBG In Home     $                  3,260  
10330-432200  HCCBG   $                    2,346    
10390-499900  Fund Approriated Balance   $                       914    
       
     $                    3,260    $                  3,260  
       
Explanation: Public Assistance (10752) - To adjust budget to reflect actual funding allocation. 
Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Decreased by $3,260. 

 

 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense   

 Decrease 
Expense  

       
10430-514801  Fees Paid to Precinct Officials  $                    4,220    
10430-503000  Salaries-Part Time     $                  4,000  
10430-514000  Travel     $                     220  
       

64



December 6, 2010 BOC Meeting   9 

     $                    4,220    $                  4,220  
       
Explanation: Elections (10430) - Transfer budgeted funds for poll workers. 
Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 

 

 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense   

 Decrease 
Expense  

       
60808-533601  System supplies - sewer   $                    6,069    
60808-590001  Capital Outlay-sewer   $                  18,931    
60808-516001  Repairs and Maintenance     $                25,000  
       
     $                  25,000    $                25,000  
       
Explanation: 
 

Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District (60808) - Transfer funds to replace a 
blower at the Ocean Sands Sewer Plant. 

Net Budget Effect: Ocean Sands Water and Sewer District Fund (60) - No change. 

 

 

 

 

 
     Debit    Credit  
       

    
 Decrease Revenue 

or   
 Increase Revenue 

or  
Account 
Number  Account Description   Increase Expense   

 Decrease 
Expense  

       
10531-514000  Travel   $                    1,000    
10531-532000  Supplies   $                    3,305    
10531-532441  Technology under $1000   $                       500    
10531-545000  Contracted Services   $                    6,650    
10531-590000  Capital Outlay   $                  14,500    
10330-445000  Emergency Management     $                25,955  
       
     $                  25,955    $                25,955  
       
Explanation: 
 

Emergency Management (10531) - To record 2010 Emergency Management 
Planning Grant.  Technology under $1000 will be used for a printer and the capital 

65



December 6, 2010 BOC Meeting   10 

 
 
 

outlay will be used for four call taker phones ($1,000), mobile command trailer 
upgrades ($6,000), and a security system for the communications tower behind the 
communications building ($7,500). 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund - Increased by $25,955. 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, 
North Carolina, during its regularly scheduled meeting held 
on 12/6/10 authorized the following, pursuant to GS 160A 
and 270(b), that the property listed below, be disposed of 
at a public auction 

Veh             Condition/   
I.D. Year Make Model VIN Color Mileage Remarks Dept 

                  
4409 1999 Ford Explorer IFMZU34X7XUB50206 White   very well used Fire/EMS 
                  
6523 2004 Jeep Cherokee 1J4GW48S24C198167 White   frame damage Fire/EMS 

WHEREAS, the volunteer fire and rescue departments within 
the county shall have the option to obtain the list of 
surplus property prior to auction in accordance with the 
adopted Surplus Property Disposal Policy for Volunteer Fire 
and Rescue Departments; and 

WHEREAS, the public auction will be held  TBA (date, 
places and time). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of 
Commissioners of County of Currituck reserves the right to 
reject any and all bids. 

RESOLUTION  
OF  

APPRECIATION 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners wishes to 
acknowledge and express its appreciation to John W. Forbes, Jr., for his 
dedicated service to the citizens of Currituck County as Treasurer of the 
Crawford Volunteer Fire Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Forbes will be retiring from this volunteer position on December 
17, 2010, having served as a volunteer for 36 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Forbes has devoted his time, energy and talents to this 
community and provided experience and sound judgment on its behalf with 
integrity and dignity;  
 

66



December 6, 2010 BOC Meeting   11 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Currituck County Board of 
Commissioners commends Mr. Forbes for exhibiting professionalism at its best 
and strong commitment to serving the citizens of Currituck County as Treasurer 
of the Crawford Volunteer Fire Department. 
 
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED, Currituck County has been most fortunate to 
have had a person in this position with Mr. Forbes’ capabilities and amazing 
dedication to the task.  The Board of Commissioners extends to him best wishes 
in the future. 
 

Commissioner’s Report 

Commissioner Martin questioned if the County could sponsor 
a paint day at the convenience center. 

Commissioner Etheridge welcomed the new Commissioners. 

Commissioner O’Neal commented on how great the Christmas 
Parade was last Saturday. He also requested Staff to send a 
letter to our Legislators regarding the closing of the post 
office located at the County Seat; meeting with Chesapeake 
regarding increase in tolls; and the Small Area Plan for 
Corolla Village. 

Commissioner Petrey commented on the Lower Currituck Food 
Pantry. 

Commissioner Rorer reminded citizens to shop locally. 

 

County Manager’s Report 

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, stated that WRC had contacted 
the office on the repair for the Brumley Road Boating 
Access; DOT objects to the Bear signs posted on their right 
of way; and contacting the Postal Service on closing of the 
post office. 

The December 20 Board of Commissioners’ meeting was cancelled.  
A work session was discussed for either December 13 or 20.  It 
was to be scheduled for Monday, December 13, 2010. 

Closed Session: 
6. According to GS 143-318.11 (3) to consult with 

an attorney in order to preserve the attorney 
client privilege 

7. and (6) to discuss personnel 
 

67



December 6, 2010 BOC Meeting   12 

Commissioner Rorer moved to go into closed session as 
stated above.  Commissioner Martin seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 

Adjourn 

After reconvening from closed session, no action was taken. 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 
 
 

68



G.S. 153A-103(1) provides that: 
 
Each sheriff and register of deeds elected by the people has the exclusive right to hire, 
discharge, and supervise the employees of his office.  However, the board of commissioners 
must approve the appointment by such an officer of a relative by blood or marriage of nearer 
kinship than first cousin .  .  . . 
 
The Board of Commissioners will have to approve the Sheriff’s appointment or hiring of her 
brother as the requirement is statutory and applicable to the Sheriff. 
 
 
Donald I. ("Ike") McRee, Jr. 
County Attorney 
County of Currituck 
 

69



R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, 
North Carolina during its regularly scheduled meeting held 
on January 3, 2011 authorized the following, pursuant to GS 
160A and 270(b), that the property list attached, be 
declared surplus property: 
 
 
4-Incinolet Toilet  
#6491-41971 
26800 
26510 
24896 to be disposed of  
 
1-430 John Deer Tractor - 2862 
CH3029DO43724 to be sold at auction 
  

  
 
ADOPTED, this the 3rd day of January, 2011. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
O. Vance Aydlett, Chairman 
Currituck County Board of      
Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 

70



 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
 
 

ORDER OF COLLECTIONS 
 

TO THE TAX COLLECTOR OF THE COUNTY OF CURRITUCK: 
 
 You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the 

taxes, current and past due, set forth in the tax records filed in the office of the Tax 

Collector and in the tax receipts herewith delivered to you, in the amounts and from 

the taxpayers likewise therein set forth.  Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first 

lien upon all real property of the respective taxpayers in the County of Currituck, 

and this order shall be a full and sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable 

you to levy on and sell any real or personal property of such taxpayers, for and on 

account thereof, in accordance with law. 

 Witness my hand and official seal, this ______ day of 

__________________, 20_____. 

 

_________________________(SEAL) 
Chairman, Board of Commissioners of   

              Currituck County          
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Clerk of Board of Commissioners of 
Currituck County       (G.S. 105-321) 
 

71



COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
Tax Department 

P.O. Box 9 
 Currituck, North Carolina 27929 

 

 

 

Tracy Sample, Tax Administrator 
                  (252)   232-3005 
                  (252)   232-2109 
                  (252)   232-3568 (FAX) 

 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO: Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
 
CC: Sandra Hill, Finance Director 
 
From:  Tracy Sample, Tax Administrator 
 
Date: December 9, 2010   
 
RE: 2010 Tax Levy & Prior Year Taxes to be Charged to the Tax Collector 
 
 
 
 
 

2010 REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY TAX LEVY* $ 28,010,732.55 

PRIOR YEARS TAXES**     $               646,388.67 

     TOTAL TAXES $ 29,330,263.60 

 

*The Current Year levy includes all penalties, solid waste fees, special district and animal taxes; does 
not include levies of public utilities valued by the NC Department of Revenue and registered motor 
vehicles, nor for tax discoveries, adjustments, and releases. These are reported to the Finance Director 
as required throughout the year.  

 

** Prior Year Taxes as of November 30, 2010 

 
 
 

72



Number 2011047

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

60808-557100 Software License Fee 720
60808-516001 Repairs and Maintenance 720
61818-545100 Credit Card Fees 5,500
61818-557100 Software License Fee 3,041
61818-590003 Fire Hydrants 8,541
65858-545100 Credit Card Fees 55
65858-557100 Software License Fee 29
65858-532000 Supplies 29
65858-533200 Lab Tests 55
66868-532000 Supplies 10,000
66868-557100 Software License Fee 564
66868-516000 Maintenance & Repair 9,000
66868-533200 Lab Tests 564
66868-545000 Contract Services 1,000

19,909$                      19,909$                   

Explanation:

Mainland Water Fund (61) - No change.
Moyock Commons Sewer Fund (65) - No change.
Southern Outer Banks Water Fund (66) - No change.

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Ocean Sands Water & Sewer (60808); Mainland Water (61818); Moyock Commons Sewer (65858); 
Southern Outer Banks Water (66868) - Transfer funds for increased software license, credit card fees 
and system supplies.

Net Budget Effect: Ocean Sands Water and Sewer Fund (60) - No change.

73



Number 2011048

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

65858-590000 Capital Outlay 12,000$                      
65858-561000 Professional Services 12,000$                   

12,000$                      12,000$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Moyock Commons Sewer (65858) - Replace control panels, monitoring system and pump controls for 
Moyock Commons.

Net Budget Effect: Moyock Commons Sewer Fund (65) - No change.

74



Number 2011049

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10480-590441 Technology over $1,000 1,768$                        
10480-532000 Supplies 1,768$                     

1,768$                        1,768$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Register of Deeds (10480) - Transfer funds to replace workstation in Register of Deeds office.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

75



Number 2011050

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10441-532000 Supplies 163$                          
10441-590000 Capital Outlay 3,790$                        
10380-484001 Insurance Recovery 3,953

3,953$                        3,953$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Information Technology (10441) - Increase appropriations to replace a fax machine and computer 
network switches damaged by lightning.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $3,953.

76



Number 2011051

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50795-545000 Contract Services 2,216,647$                 
50795-561000 Professional Services 160,000$                  
50795-570000 Reimburseable Expenses 429$                          
50795-588000 Contingency 562,941$                    
50795-590000 Furnishings & Fixtures 605,000
50795-594500 Site Work 2,015,017

2,780,017$                 2,780,017$               

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Community Center/YMCA/Senior Center (50795) - To transfer budgeted funds per amendment 
contracts.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction (50) - No change.

77



Number 2011052

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10550-503000 Salaries - Part time 14,372$                      
10550-502000 Salaries - Regular 14,372$                   

14,372$                      14,372$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Airport (10550) - Transfer budgeted funds from regular to part-time salaries due to full-time vacancy from 
July through October 2010.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

78



Number 2011053

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10960-539000 Unemployment Compensation 12,760$                      
10960-554000 Insurance & Bonds 12,760$                   

12,760$                      12,760$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Central Services (10960) - To increase appropriation for acutal unemployment charges for charging year 
July 31, 2010.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

79



Number 2011054

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510-590000 Capital Outlay 33,700$                      
10390-495015 T F - Occupancy Tax 33,700$                   

33,700$                      33,700$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Sheriff (10510) - Increase appropriations to purchase three ATVs and one 21' Caribbean Skiff with 
motor and trailer for the Sheriff's Department.  These are replacements.  The 19' Maycraft will be used 
as a trade-in for the boat.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $33,700.

80



Number 2011055

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

20609-545000  Contract Services 12,950$                      
20609-588000 Contingency 12,950$                   

12,950$                      12,950$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Whalehead Watershed Service District (20609) - Clear right-of-ways on six streets; repair potholes and 
lawncare in the Whalehead Watershed Service District.

Net Budget Effect: Whalehead Watershed Service District (20) - No change.

81



Number 2011056

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10510-557500 Crime Control Act 20,000$                      
10390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 20,000$                   

20,000$                      20,000$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Sheriff (10510) - To carry-forward funds collected from Crime Control Act.

Net Budget Effect: Opearting Fund (10) - Increased by $20,000.

82



Number 2011057

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50550-592011 Partial Parallel Taxiway 36244.10.4.1 3,404$                        
50330-448000 State Aid to Airports 3,064$                     
50550-592010 Airport Non-match County Funds 340

3,404$                        3,404$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Airport Construction (50550) - To increase appropriations for Airport grant 36244.10.4.1 per grant 
funding allocation.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction (50) - Increased by $3,064.

83



Number 2011058

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10530-502100 Salaries - Overtime 150,000$                    
10530-503500 Salaries - Temp Services 70,000$                      
10530-502000 Salaries 200,000$                  
10530-502200 Holiday Pay 20,000

220,000$                    220,000$                  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Emergency Medical Services (10530) - To transfer budgeted funds to accommodate budget overruns in 
overtime and temporary services due to multiple open positions and increased stadding of Medic 1.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

84



Number 2011059

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense

50512-596100 Professional Services 20,000$                      
50390-495040 T F - Capital Improvements 20,000$                   

40750-487050 T T - County Govt Construction 20,000
40390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 20,000

40,000$                      40,000$                   

Explanation:

Capital Improvements Fund (40) - increased by $20,000.

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Animal Shelter (50512) - Initial appropriation for feasibility study and design of Animal Shelter.

Net Budget Effect: Co Govt Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $20,000.

85



Number 2011060

 Debit  Credit 

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense

10650-545000 Contract Services 4,100$                        
10390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 4,100$                     

4,100$                        4,100$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Cooperative Extension (10640) -  Increase appropriations to fill FSA vacant position.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $4100.

86



RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT 
 

 
WHEREAS,  Albemarle RC&D Council, Inc. is a local  non-profit tax exempt charity 
serving the Albemarle region which includes Currituck County, and 
 
WHEREAS, Albemarle RC&D Council, Inc. has a mission to promote environmental 
quality and conservation while working to ensure sustained economic development, and  
 
WHEREAS, Albemarle RC&D Council, Inc. has  completed over 89 region-wide 
projects and 33 projects within our County since 1972 benefitting the citizens in the 
Currituck County service area, and  
 
WHEREAS, Albemarle RC&D Council, Inc. is committed to continuing to serve the 
citizens in the Currituck County service area, and 
 
WHEREAS, All programs and services of  Albemarle RC&D Council, Inc. are offered on 
a non-discriminatory basis, without regard to race, color, national origin, religion, sex, 
sexual orientation, age, marital or family status, disability or political beliefs. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that we, the Currituck County Commissioners fully support 
Albemarle RC&D Council, Inc. and the work this organization does to make our 
communities better places in which to live and work. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution be spread upon the Meeting Minutes 
of the Currituck County Board of Commissioners on ____________, 20__  as a 
permanent record of the achievements of Albemarle RC&D Council, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
________________________       __________ 
   (Chairman name), Chairman                                        Date 
              

87



NC Parks and Recreation Trust Fund PARTF
20102011 Basic Facts and Assurances

Applicant Currituck County County Currituck County

Federal EmployerID Number 56 6000292

Local GovernmentsContact Person Local Government Manager
Name Terry Temple Name Dan Scanlon

Title Currituck Rural Center Director Title County Manager
Address 120 Community Way Address Post Office Box 39

CityStateZip Barco NC 27917 CityStateZip Currituck NC 27929

Telephone 252232262 ext 4008 Telephone 2522322075

Emailterrytemple@currituckcountyncgov Emaildanscanlon@currituckcountyncgov

Chief Elected Official Type ofproject

Name O Vance Aydlett Jr Acquisition
Title County Commissioner

Development
Address Post Office Box 39

Acquisition and Development
CityStateZip Currituck NC 27939

Site Control Costs rounded to nearest dollar

Owned by local government PARTF funds requested 269301

Owned by school board Local governments

L d b
matching funds 269301

ease y applicant for 25 years or more

Date lease expires Total cost of project 538603

Recreation Resources Service RRS regional consultant Dallis Tucker

Short title of project Currituck Rural Center

Provide a brief description of the project The proposed Currituck Rural Center project encompasses 2360
boardwalk trail parallel to coastal wetlands with kayakcanoe pier and floating dock horse lungingtraining pen and
do a ilit course

Approval by local governing board The local governing board must approve this certification
I hereby certify the information contained in the attached application is true and correct and the 50 required

matching funds will be available during the project period

Adopted this day of give date

Chief Elected Official

Signature Print or Type Name and Title

For applications sponsored by two or more local governments or a local government and school administrative

unit one copy ofthis form must be completed and signed by each applicant One of the local governments
must be identified as the rima s onsor in the A licant section at the to of this a e

88



Justification for the Project

Currituck Rural CenterCountyof Currituck

The proposed project would create aunique facility in Currituck County with multiple
recreational opportunities including kayaking canoeing fishing hiking and environmental
education These recreational opportunities would complement existing programs at the
Currituck Rural Center that include horse shows clinics and events and agricultural historic
preservation

Currituck County is a rural county with a population ofapproximately24000 Most of
the land along the Currituck Sound is privately owned which limits waterbasedrecreation for
local residents and visitors alike With its location on the Currituck Sound including water
access maritime forest and coastal marshlands the new Currituck Rural Center offers an

excellent opportunity for providing waterbased recreation hiking and environmental education
to both local residents and visitors

Currituck County recreation and extension staff recently conducted surveys and public
meetings to gather public input on recreational needs in the county Residents from across the
county clearly indicated a desire for more playgrounds walking trails and waterbased
recreational opportunities A recreationalneedssurvey of 518 residents is included in the
PARTF application

The proposed project would focus on the following activities

Kayak and canoe launch This will allow for recreational use ofkayaks and canoes by
local citizens as well as tourists An ADA Americans with Disabilities Act compliant
floating kayak and canoe launch would expand recreational opportunities to persons who
are currently limited by the existing facilities There also will be an ADA accessible
walkway between the parking lot launch boardwalk and a covered picnic pavilion A
pier and picnic platform on the Sound will provide additional water access A new5mile
paddle trail will be created along the Currituck Sound which will allow paddlers to

safely enjoy the unique coastal marshes and wildlife in this section ofthe Sound Parks
and Recreation will offer kayaking and canoeing classes for residents and visitors during
the summer months The county hopes to obtain land near the new paddle trail to
construct paddle camping platforms
Maritime Forest and Marshland Boardwalk One ofthe best features ofthis park is its
beautiful maritime forest and coastal marshland A2245 foot boardwalk will allow
residents and visitors to safely enjoy the natural beauty ofthe coastal environment
Educational signage will be installed along the boardwalk to highlight the plants and
wildlife found in these unique ecosystems The boardwalk also will be handicap
accessible

Playground and two picnic pavilions A2500 square foot playground area with

equipment will serve612yearolds A pavilion close to the playground will provide
picnic opportunities

With its access to the Currituck Sound and unique coastal ecosystems Currituck County is
committed to making the Currituck Rural Center one ofthe premier multiuserecreational
facilities in eastern North Carolina To achieve this goal Currituck County has committed 11
cash match for the PARTF application

89



m s
s

M n

rm aia
o a p

7 v u0i7

O61
7

4 1 D I

Q N Q

r

4 Q
N j X

v S

Q
g

cti
F

a

N Gg Q
a

Q
N O Y

O C A V t
N Q 4 J

N i

0o
o n x
X

y

r

0

N
j
O

U
p o

N

N

N

cn

o
n
m

r

Q

N O

z

n

n
O
c

n
G

C

0

d

0
N
N

i 41
a ov

N

N

m
N

3
m

O

D

Q

1

N

O
m

m

Q1

D C n
cD

cD

C n

tD

c

ofD
s

C3

f7

C

g

mD

II a1

u

tD
y

d ti 7
s

D
O

J

N
r

v
X

L

N
l

cO
O

r N

Ct
7

N v
lp

1
D 1

O

O

d

90



91



92



CURRITUCK COUNTY ‘BUY LOCAL’ CAMPAIGN 
 
The Currituck County Tourism Department is making a proposal to the commissioners to 
fund a “buy local” campaign.  Funds would be used to aggressively educate county citizens 
on the importance of buying goods and using services within the county’s borders.  The 
benefits of shopping local will be communicated through a variety of outlets, and an 
incentive program will be established to encourage participation. 
 
Studies have shown that local retailers in communities operating “buy local” campaigns 
report stronger sales than those lacking such efforts.  Several compelling studies 
demonstrate the increased local economic multiplier that results when people spend at 
local independent businesses, that independents give a greater percentage of sales to 
charities, and other economic arguments for supporting local businesses. 
 
In March, 2009, the Currituck County Economic Development Board passed a resolution to 
support county purchasing and sourcing of goods and services with Currituck-based firms 
(when available).  This resolution was later adopted as policy by the Currituck County Board 
of Commissioners.  The proposed campaign will take this “buy local” initiative to the next 
level and help sustain local and independent businesses. 
 
Local citizens, of course, are not the typical audience the tourism department promotes to. 
But considering the number of Currituck County businesses that have “gone under” in 
recent months, department staff feel it is vital to assist our county’s businesses in keeping 
their doors open.  Basically, if we don’t take action there won’t be any restaurants, gas 
stations, shops, etc. for vacationers to stop at on their way to the beach!  And a decrease in 
sales tax means less funding for county services including schools, law enforcement, EMS, 
etc.  
 
Suggestions and ideas from local business owners, Commissioners, Tourism Advisory Board 
members, Economic Development Board members, Chamber of Commerce Board 
members, and other stakeholders will be sought as the campaign is developed.  Established 
“buy local” initiatives in other communities will be examined to determine the most 
efficient program for Currituck County.   
 
The Tourism Department realizes that tracking the effectiveness of a “buy local” campaign 
would be a challenge, and most likely, very expensive.  However, staff will make every effort 
to monitor (to the extent possible) the program and make necessary changes to ensure 
local businesses benefit from the increased advertising and awareness campaign. 

93



The Tourism Department is excited about the prospect of carrying forward the mission of 
the Commissioners, Economic Development Board, and the Tourism Advisory Board to see 
local businesses thrive. 
 
 

Campaign Development 

• Exploration for brand and program information 

• Brand articulation / graphics / tagline 

• Campaign launch plan and public awareness initiative 

• Campaign implementation: online promotion, print/radio advertising, presentations 
to local businesses/Chamber/civic groups, etc. 

 

94



 

Proposed Additional Marketing Funds 2010-2011 
 
TV commercials aired in target markets – Expand airing of commercials in target markets of 
Philadelphia, New Jersey and Delaware (approximately 2.5 million households; #4 market in 
the country) 

Vendor: Eye Candy Digital Video (Moyock) 
Cost: $50,000 

 
TV production, appearing on both web and broadcast channels – Produce videos that 
feature the local flavor (dining, shopping, historic attractions, etc.)  

Vendor: Eye Candy Digital Video (Moyock) 
Cost - $25,000 

 
Increased online advertising – SEO, pay-per-click, display ads, social network ads, etc.;     
will target late spring and early fall travelers 

Vendors: Google, YouTube & Facebook, Ciniva Systems  (Virginia Beach) 
Cost: $200,000 ($182,000 paid directly to Google/YouTube/Facebook; $18,000 
management/design fee, media planning, and performance analysis paid to Ciniva) 

 
E-blasts to potential visitors – Transfer e-blast campaign from current vendor (Ciniva) to a 
Currituck County vendor (VBL Technologies) 

Vendor: VBL Technologies (Powells Point) 
Cost: $4,000 

 
Golf marketing campaign – Expand the current campaign to market local golf courses 

Vendor: OBX Golf Travel (Harbinger) 
Cost - $15,000  

 
“Buy Local First” campaign – Develop a comprehensive “buy local first” campaign targeted 
at supporting unique, homegrown businesses in Currituck County. Campaign to include 
creating a mini-website, branding, print materials, e-campaign, etc.  

Vendor: VBL Technologies (Powells Point) for mini-website development, Eye Candy Digital 
Video (Moyock) for production of video ads, various printers and advertising outlets 
Cost: $30,000 

95



Additional events promotion / development of a parking and traffic flow plan for 
Currituck Heritage Park & the 4-H Rural Center – Increase marketing for upcoming events 
that have the potential to bring visitors to Currituck County; hire a professional firm to 
develop a parking/traffic flow plan for Heritage Park (specifically for the annual July 4th 
Independence Day Celebration) and the 4-H Rural Center (for major events) 

Events: Marsh Grass Music Festival, Currituck Rural Farm Festival & Open House, etc. 
Vendors: Various advertising outlets, parking contractor 
Cost: $20,000 

  
TOTAL - $344,000 

 
 
 
 

 
 

96



Number TDA2011007

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15447-513000 Utilities 19,500$                     
15447-526201 Playground Incentive 19,500$                   

19,500$                     19,500$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners as the Currituck County Tourism 
Development Authority, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - No change.

Tourism Related Expenditures (15447) - Transfer funds for tap fees to the Southern Outer 
Banks Water System for the Outer Banks Facilities.

97



Number TDA2011008

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-539000 Unemployment Compensation 1,405$                       
15390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 1,405$                     

1,405$                       1,405$                     

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners as the Currituck County Tourism 
Development Authority, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Tourism Promotion (15442) - Increase appropriations for unemployment compensation for 
the charging year ending July 31, 2010.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $1,405.

98



Number TDA2011009

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15442-514000 Travel 3,400$                       
15442-526200 Promotional Efforts 350,700$                   
15442-514500 Training & Education 3,400$                     
15350-465002 Co-Op Advertising 6,700$                     
15390-499900 Appropriated Fund Balance 344,000$                 

354,100$                   354,100$                 

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners as the Currituck County Tourism 
Development Authority, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Tourism Promotion (15442) - Increase appropriations proposed additional marketing funds 
per proposal and for co-op advertising.  Also to transfer funds from training & education to 
travel to attend additional travel shows rather than attending educational conferences.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $350,700.

99



Number TDA2011010

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

15447-587010 T T - Operating Fund 33,700$                     
15320-415000 Occupancy Tax 33,700$                   

33,700$                     33,700$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners as the Currituck County Tourism 
Development Authority, at a meeting on the 3rd day of January, 2011 , passed the following 
amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

Tourism Related Expenditures (15447) - To transfer funds from Occupancy Tax to the 
Operating Fund for ATVs and boat for the Sheriff Department.

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $33,700.

100


	Agenda
	Public Hearing and Action:
	10-30 Case Analysis

	Public Hearing and Action:
	10-29 Case Analysis

	Consideration of 
	memo
	ordinance

	Consideration of Fixed Base Operator at Airport
	memo
	lease agreement

	Appointment of two At Large and District 4 Appointments to Airport Board
	airport
	Airport Board Appointment Form
	Barbara Courtney Application

	Approval of December 6, 2010, Minutes
	December 6 Minutes

	Request to hire Jon Dennis at Detention Center 
	General Statutes

	Resolution to declare surplus property, public works
	surplus

	Approval of 2010 Order of Tax Collections
	resolution
	Memo

	Budget Amendments
	Budget Amendments

	Approval of Resolution RC&D
	resolution

	Approval of Grant for Rural Center
	PARTF Grant Application
	PARTF Site Plan

	Change orders 1 & 2, Baker Construction - Judicial Roof
	Baker CO 1_2

	Consideration of "Buy Local" Campaign
	buy local memo

	Request for additional Marketing funds from Occupancy Tax
	memo

	TDA Budget Amendments
	Revised Budget Amendments


